
 

July 13, 2015 1 of 8 Regular Meeting 

 REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 13, 2015 

 

The regular meeting of the Fair Lawn Planning Board on Monday, July 13, 2015 was called to order 

at 7:30 p.m. by Chairman Brent Pohlman in the Council Chambers of the Fair Lawn Municipal 

Building. 

 

The notice of the Open Public Meetings Law was read stating that the newspapers were notified 

and a notice posted on the first floor bulletin board of the Fair Lawn Municipal Building. 

 

Roll Call 

 

Present:   Peter Kortright, III,  Joan Fragala, Benjamin Bontekoe, Amy Hummerstone,  Vice 

Chairman Joseph Mele,  Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz,  Chairman Brent Pohlman, Oliver Wilhelm  

Absent:  James Hughes, Larry Metzger, Daniel Furphy 

 

Also present:  Board Attorney Thomas Randall, Board Engineer Jeffrey Morris, Board Secretary 

Cathy Hochkeppel 

 

Approval of minutes 

 

Upon motion by Joan Fragala and a second by Joseph Mele, the work session minutes of the June 

8, 2015, meeting were unanimously approved.  AYES:  Peter Kortright, III, Joseph Mele, Benjamin 

Bontekoe, Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz,  Joan Fragala, Amy Hummerstone Abstain:  Oliver Wilhelm, 

Chairman Pohlman.   Upon motion by Joseph Mele and a second by Joan Fragala, the regular 

meeting minutes of the June 8, 2015, meeting were approved.  AYES:  Peter Kortright, III, Joseph 

Mele, Benjamin Bontekoe, Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz, Joan Fragala, Amy Hummerstone, Abstain:  

Oliver Wilhelm, Chairman Pohlman  

 

Escrow bills 

 

Upon motion by Joan Fragala and a second by Joseph Mele, the escrow bills were unanimously 

approved.  AYES:  Peter Kortright, III, Joseph Mele, Benjamin Bontekoe, Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz,  

Joan Fragala, Amy Hummerstone, Oliver Wilhelm, Chairman Pohlman  

 

Public Comment 

 

Chairman Pohlman opened the matter to the public but no public wished to be heard. 



 

July 13, 2015 2 of 8 Regular Meeting 

 

Memorializing resolutions 

 

Bright Start Day Care; 9-10 Saddle River Road; Block 1507, Lot 21; minor site plan 

 

Upon motion by Joan Fragala and a second by Oliver Wilhelm, the memorializing resolution was 

unanimously adopted.  AYES:  Joan Fragala, Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz, Vice Chairman Mele, 

Benjamin Bontekoe, Peter Kortright 

 

Promenade Dental Care;   Block 4801, Lot 1, Sign Variance 

 

Upon motion by Peter Kortright and a second by Benjamin Bontekoe, the memorializing resolution 

was unanimously adopted.  AYES:  Joan Fragala, Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz, Vice Chairman Mele, 

Benjamin Bontekoe, Peter Kortright 

 

28-02 Broadway; Block 3207.1, Lot 1; minor site plan 

 

Stuart Liebman appeared on behalf of the applicant.  He explained that they are not planning any 

addition to the building.  The application is for site plan and variance approval.  The existing 

building is not being changed nor is the use being changed.  There is a remarkable aesthetic 

change and improvement to the building.    The proposal is to modify the property in the front, 

replace it with planted area,  improve the façade of the building and to improve the striping in the 

parking lot.   This is a significant aesthetic enhancement to the area.  There are existing variances 

for setbacks and impervious coverage.   

 

Erik Kieller of Blue Line Architecture was sworn in and qualified as an expert architect.  The plans 

dated 5/7/15, revised 7/9/15 were marked as Exhibit A-1.  Mr. Kieller testified that there will be 

architectural features added to the building to give it a face-lift.  It will break up the façade.  He 

noted the following bulk variances:  front yard setback is now 14.05’ and the proposed setback 

with the new projections is 12.17’.  The side yard setback on 28th Street is 5.3’ and 5.0’ is the 

proposed setback with a requirement of 11.42 feet.  The side yard setback on 29th street exists at 

4.9’ and is proposed at 3’ where the requirement is 16.85 feet.    Under the signage code, a canopy 

can only project out 8 feet from the front of the building.  The proposed canopy will project 15 

feet.   The edge of the canopy is 3 inches from the property line which also requires a variance.     

The impervious coverage is currently 98.7% and the proposal is for 93.3% due to the additional 

landscaping.  The parking requirements for this building is 70 spaces.  Currently, there are 71 



 

July 13, 2015 3 of 8 Regular Meeting 

spaces.  Due to the the new restriping, there will be 72 spaces.    The applicant met with the 

Broadway Improvement Company and plans were submitted to the district.   

 

Mr. Kieller explained the current ADA access to the site and the improvements.  He also explained 

the dumpster area.  He testified that all medical garbage is handled by a contractor.  He added 

that there is more than enough capacity in the dumpsters as they are half empty when they are 

picked up.     

 

A colorized version of the landscaping plan dated May 7, 2015 and last revised May 26, 2015 was 

marked as Exhibit A-2.    He explained that they are removing a large portion of the concrete and 

replacing them with pavers.  There is color and variety.  The boxwood has been changed to green 

rock harness.    The new plantings will have an irrigation system.   The drawings were changed to 

reflect two inches of mulch throughout.    He explained the landscaping for the entire site.   The 

canopy serves not just as a decorative feature but to enable a patient to be dropped off and be 

protected in inclement weather.   

 

A packet of pictures was marked as Exhibit A-3.  Photographs of the existing conditions were 

marked as Exhibit A-4.  He explained the added benefits will be better visual effects.  The building 

will also be more easily identifiable.    He testified that the variances requested will create 

aesthetic improvements and the granting will create benefits to the community.  Mr. Kieller added 

that he does not believe there will be any adverse impact.   

 

Oliver Wilhelm commended the applicant for the improvements.   The apron will be replaced but 

will not change in size.  Mr. Wilhelm remarked there is a residence on the south side, and they 

may want to consider doing some landscaping on the edge.  Mr. Kieller replied that there is a six 

foot high fence.    Benjamin Bontekoe asked whether the plants in front of the fire connection will 

be obstructive.  Mr. Kieller explained that he believed the location would be fine but if they need 

to they can raise the connection.   Mr. Bontekoe suggested that they add a red light to the bell 

above the connection.  Joseph Mele asked about the adequacy of the width of the sidewalk along 

Broadway.   He asked about the handicapped ramps and stated that the landing should be five 

feet.  He also suggested wheel stops along the building and striping on the pavement for 

exit/entrance.  He asked about the condition of the fences around the property.  Mr. Kieller stated 

that the chain link fence has a mesh.   He suggested that the condition of the fence checked by the 

Board Engineer.  Jeffrey Morris stated that the northerly most property is residential use but the 

rest of the neighbors have a commercial use.  Mr. Mele commented that where there is an existing 

residential use, the applicant should examine the condition of the fence and replace if possible.      

Mr. Morris asked about the pavers near the handicapped spaces and was told they will be easily 



 

July 13, 2015 4 of 8 Regular Meeting 

traversed.  Jeffrey Morris commented that the requirement for the width of the sidewalk along 

Broadway is six feet.  The Borough Engineer suggested that it be 6 ½ feet, and Mr. Morris believes 

that will be sufficient. 

 

Eve Mancuso, of Ramsey New Jersey, was sworn in and qualified as an expert engineer. Ms. 

Mancuso testified that she is familiar with the plans.  Ms. Mancuso explained the circulation in 

detail.   There are currently two ADA stalls in the interior of the parking lot.  The sidewalk 

condition varies and the sections of sidewalk that need repair will be replaced.  There is an existing 

block wall along the south side of the parking lot on the 29th side of the lot.  The conditions of the 

fences vary and no one property owner owns them.  The south lot on 28th Street has a residential 

use even though it is not zoned residential.  She explained the drainage plan.  The applicant will be 

resurfacing the lot and adding an underground retention system that is designed for a 100 year 

storm.  The parking stalls are 9’ x 18’.  They will be adding additional handicapped spaces.  She 

explained the details of the trash enclosure.   The applicant plans on seeking permission to have 

two of the on-street parking stalls designated for drop-off only.  The soil erosion plan dated May 7, 

2014 was marked as Exhibit A-5.  Drainage calculations have been sent to Mr. Morris.   Mr. Morris 

suggested drop in filters to keep garbage out of system.   

 

Oliver Wilhelm asked if there was enough room for the egress doors to swing open and was told 

there was sufficient room.   Peter Kortright stated that the fence on the southern portion of the 

property should be replaced.  Attorney Liebman stated that the applicant will not get involved in 

putting a fence on someone else’s property but if it is on their own property, it will be replaced.  

Any curb in need of repair will be replaced.  Joseph Mele asked about the lighting, and it was 

explained that a new light was added near the commercial property.    The applicant is adding light 

along the building as well.    There will not be any spread on to the residential property.  Amy 

Hummerstone commented that she is glad they are pursuing the drop off area for the on-street 

parking.  Joan Fragala asked about the safety of the pedestrian traversing from the ADA parking 

space, and Ms. Mancuso assured her that it was safe.  Mr. Morris commented that this proposal 

will eliminate a potential hazardous situation by getting rid of the roof leaders that drain on the 

property.   

 

Chairman Pohlman opened the matter to the public and no public wished to be heard. 

 

Don Smartt, project director for BIC, was sworn in and stated that this investment by the doctors is 

consistent with the market study and demonstrates that this area is well positioned to become an 

important center for medical services.  The BIC looks forward to this investment and the 

repositioning of Broadway for the future. 



 

July 13, 2015 5 of 8 Regular Meeting 

 

No public wished to question the witness. 

 

Attorney Liebman stated the applicant is simply improving the building.  The applicant is not asking 

to change the use or create a bigger building but is merely enhancing the site in many ways.  They 

want to make the outside catch up to what is going on in the inside.   

 

Chairman Pohlman outlined the conditions of approval.  There shall be five foot landings on the 

ramp, striping to identify traffic, a red light added to fire connection, the fence at southern end on 

28th Street will be replaced if it is on applicant’s property, drop in filters for the drainage system 

and four additional wheel stops on the angle spaces near the building.    Peter Kortright moved 

that the application be approved subject to the conditions outlined and Oliver Wilhelm seconded 

the motion.  AYES:  Peter Kortright, III, Joseph Mele, Benjamin Bontekoe Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz.  

Joan Fragala, Amy Hummerstone, Oliver Wilhelm, Chairman Pohlman  

 

Halle Realty, 12-01 River Road; Block 5611, Lots 42-47; major site plan   

 

Matthew Rogers appeared on behalf of the applicant.    He explained that the applicant wanted to 

build a new retail building that is approximately 5,000 square feet.    Mr. Rogers explained that he 

will have three witnesses plus Mr. Smartt and asked that Mr. Smartt testify first. 

 

Don Smartt, project director of the RRIC, was sworn in.  He testified that the applicant has 

provided a long sought after solution to a property that has been vacant for two years.  This is an 

applicant who is bringing a retail setting back to River Road.  It is consistent with River Road’s 

master plan.  The applicant has indicated they will work with RRIC following the approval ensuring 

that the aesthetics are consistent with the River Road design manual.  This applicant has RRIC’s full 

enthusiastic support. 

 

No public wished to question the witness. 

 

Adam Darr, manager of the Halle Property was sworn in.  He testified that there was 

contamination on the property and they financed the clean-up of the property.  A statement that 

the site is clear has been received.    He explained that they are a high end jewelry store and they 

also make their own jewelry.  He stated that they would be willing to work with the RRIC, and also 

will enter into a parking agreement with the Borough for one space.      

 



 

July 13, 2015 6 of 8 Regular Meeting 

Peter Kortright asked about security measures and Mr. Darr explained that there will be an alarm 

system.  They buzz people in and there are security gates.  Amy Hummerstone asked if the bridal 

shop is a proposed use and Mr. Darr stated this is the type of use they would prefer.  Since it is not 

yet rented, it is not definite but the use will be a complimentary use.     

 

There was some questions about the final approval by EPA, and Mr. Rogers stated that the letter 

would be sent to the Planning Board Secretary. 

 

Steven Kostner, was sworn in and qualified as an expert engineer.  Mr. Kostner testified that the 

site plan dated September 24, 2014, represents the northeast corner of Berdan Avenue and River 

Road.   He testified that the building is conforming in all aspects.    Mr. Kostner explained the curb 

cuts that are existing.  There is an egress along easterly property line.  There is a curb cut and 

apron near the corner of River Road and Berdan Avenue and that will be removed.   The applicant 

will keep the one way access into the site on Berdan Avenue.  The parking lay-out includes three 

compact spaces, and a handicapped space with a total of 21 spaces.    There is a ramp coming off 

River Road but they could also put a similar ramp at the end of space 18.   He explained the details 

of the site.  There is a substantial retaining wall on the north side of the property.      The plan 

dated September 24, 2014 was marked as Exhibit A-1.   Mr. Kostner also explained the drainage 

plan.  There will be a slight reduction in impervious coverage which will result in a decrease in run-

off.  They are also creating two seepage pits.    Drainage calculations have been submitted.    Mr. 

Kostner explained the lighting and landscaping plan in detail.  The lighting plan dated September 

24, 2014, was marked as Exhibit A-2.   Mr. Kostner stated that there will be additional shrubs on 

Berdan Avenue and River Road.  He also indicated extensive landscaping on other areas of the site.  

The existing maple tree will remain.  Mr. Kostner testified that the trash container will be placed 

approximately 100 feet north of Berdan Avenue and will be screened.  The enclosure is 

approximately seven feet by seven feet.     

 

Mr. Wilhelm asked about access from the handicapped space to the entry.  Jeffrey Morris stated 

that this should be a standard sidewalk handicapped ramp approximately four or five feet.    Mr. 

Wilhelm suggested a tree in the landscape area that enhances the entryway.  Peter Kortright 

suggested a six foot vinyl fence along the gap bordering the residential house.  He also asked 

about access to the trash area and Mr. Kostner stated the trash would be picked up on off hours.  

Joseph Mele suggested a six foot high masonry block wall on three sides of the trash enclosure.  

Mr. Kostner stated that the enclosure is a chain link fence.   Mr. Mele stated there is an empty 

area along River Road.  He suggested interesting landscaping in that area.    Mr. Mele was 

concerned about light spilling onto the residential site, and Mr. Kostner stated that a backsplash 

can be used.  Mr. Mele also suggested LED lights as they are easier to direct the light.    Ms. Fragala 



 

July 13, 2015 7 of 8 Regular Meeting 

asked about the air conditioning units and was told they would be on the roof.   Mr. Morris asked 

for the detail of the light on the right side.  He stated that the light should be LED that is downlit.   

Mr. Morris was concerned about the county eliminating spaces 20 and 21.  He also suggested open 

grates on the seepage pits.  Mr. Morris wants to examine the DEP approval as he has some 

concerns.   Mr. Dar explained that there are no monitoring wells on the site.   

 

Chairman Pohlman opened the matter to the public and no public wished to question the witness. 

 

Oswaldo Martinez, was sworn in and qualified as an expert architect.  Sheet A-1 floor plan was 

marked as Exhibit A-3.  Mr. Martinez explained the open floor plan in detail and the two separate 

entrances.    Mr. Martinez stated that the air conditioners would be roof mounted, screened and 

would be placed toward the center of the building.  The parking lot view showing the two 

entrances was marked as Exhibit A-4.  He explained that there would be some low voltage LED 

decorative lights on the building.  He explained the exterior of the building and the different 

materials planned to be used will complement one another.  Mr. Martinez stated he did not see 

any reason why there could be additional landscaping and/or a tree in the green area as suggested 

by the Board members.      Mr. Wilhelm stated that this project is going to be welcome addition 

and it will be pleasant to see the tired building demolished.  He suggested that the entryway be 

accented.  Mr. Rogers stated that any signage that is installed will meet the code requirements.  

Peter Kortright asked about the signage and was told that it will be internally lit form letters.    Mr. 

Mele suggested that the side by the residential site should also have some detail to it to break up 

the vastness.   Ms. Hummerstone concurs with Mr. Wilhelm on the entranceway and with Mr. 

Mele relative to the pilasters on the residential side.   Ms. Fragala suggested that there not be a 

large tree.  Mr. Morris stated that he is concerned about the grading and a ramp might be required 

in the proposed landscape area.    Mr. Rogers stated that they would be willing to work with the 

Board Engineer relative to the final plan.   

 

Matthew Rogers thanked the Board for their time.  He believes it will be a great addition to this 

area.   

 

Chairman Pohlman listed the conditions of approval that included participation in a cooperative 

parking agreement for one space, installation of a ramp from the marked handicapped space area, 

additional landscaping along the plaza area in front, additional fencing on the southeast corner 

adjacent to the residential property, additional landscaping behind the bus stop, light detail and 

consultation with the Board Engineer to prevent spillage onto the residential area,  providing all 

DEP documents to the Planning Board Secretary, Board Attorney and Board Engineer, design 



 

July 13, 2015 8 of 8 Regular Meeting 

change to break up the wall that faces the residential property,  trash and recyclables to be picked 

up off hours. 

 

There was some discussion relative to the masonry walls on three sides of the trash enclosure. 

The architect suggested brick or stone and this condition was accepted by the Board.   

 

Oliver Wilhelm moved that that application be approved subject to the conditions listed and Joan 

Fragala seconded the motion.  AYES:  Peter Kortright, III, Joseph Mele, Benjamin Bontekoe Deputy 

Mayor Lefkowitz.  Joan Fragala, Amy Hummerstone, Oliver Wilhelm, Chairman Pohlman  

 

 

Adjournment 

 

Upon motion by Joan Fragala and a second by Deputy Mayor Lefkowitz, the meeting was 

unanimously adjourned at 10:30 p.m. 

    

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Cathryn Hochkeppel 

Secretary of the Planning Board 


